
Mojave Southern Great Basin RAC                                         Thursday, June 16, 2005 1

Mojave-Southern Great Basin Resource Advisory Council 
 

Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, June 16, 2005 

Ely BLM Field Office 
 

Resource Advisory Council members present and category represented: 
 
Marta Agee      Ranching/Grazing 
Dr. John E. Hiatt     Wildlife (Vice Chairman) 
Robert Maichle      Environment 
Dr. Steve Parker     Academic/UNLV 
John Weisser      Dispersed Recreation 
Billie Young      Wild Horse & Burro 
Dr. Colleen Beck     Archeology/Historic 
Claire Toomey      Permitted Recreation 
Joni Eastley      Elected Official 

 
Resource Advisory Council members absent: 

 
Steve Mellington     Public at Large (Chairman) 
William Mull      Ranching/Grazing 
Mark N. Ioli      Mineral Development 
Jerry Helton      Transportation/Row 
Kenny Anderson     Native American 
 

Bureau of Land Management representatives present: 
 

Gene Kolkman BLM Ely Field Office Field Manager 
Juan Palma  BLM Las Vegas Field Office Manager 
Richard Orr BLM Caliente Field Station Manager 
William Fisher BLM Tonopah Field Station Manager 
Jo Simpson BLM NSO PAO 
Chris Hanefeld BLM Ely Field Office PAO 
Karen Eller BLM Tonopah Field Station PAO 
Karen Prentice BLM Ely Field Office ESR/Weed 

Coordinator 
Gary Medlyn BLM Ely District Project Manager 
Michael Johnson BLM Las Vegas District Planning and 

Environmental Coordinator 
Mark Henderson BLM Ely District Archaeology Team Lead 
Kerry Flood Ely BLM Hydrologist 
 

Forest Service representatives present: 
 



Mojave Southern Great Basin RAC                                         Thursday, June 16, 2005 2

Pat Irwin Humboldt-Toiyabe National Forest Ely 
District Ranger 

 
UNLV representatives present 

Allison Brody UNLV Environmental Education Strategy 
George Phillips Site Steward Coordinator, Clark County 
 

Public attendees: 
 

Lori Howard  
 
A copy of each attachment is listed in the text of or at the end of these minutes and is also on file 
with the official copy of the minutes in the Ely Field Office of the BLM.  Persons desiring to review 
said minutes should contact Chris Hanefeld, public affairs specialist, at (775) 289 1842. 
 

Joni Eastley called the meeting to order at 8:11 a.m. 
 
8:12 a.m. – Welcome and introductions 
 
8:1:13 a.m. – Housekeeping Issues 
 
8:15 a.m. – Review/Approval of the January and April Meeting Minutes 

Bob Maichle motioned to approve the minutes and Colleen Beck second and all approved.   
 
John Weisser presented Juan Palma with framed pictures in appreciation of the work that BLM has 
done in dealing with the fires in the Pahrump area. 
 
8:30 a.m. – Union Pacific and Meadow Valley Wash presented by Karen Prentice, ESR/Weed 

Coordinator for the BLM Ely District (see attachment 1) 
• Prentice explained that Ely Field Office has a team working on the Union Pacific project in 

cooperation with several other agencies.  The biggest issue is the closure of public roads & 
the continued degradation of these roads.  This group will do an assessment of the various 
areas that were affected by the flood.   

• Kerry Flood, Ely BLM Hydrologist – commented that the goal is to lessen the sediment 
load and to reestablish a natural system that is stable.  This channel depends on the 
riparian area.  If the system is stable it will decrease the threat to the railroad line.  They 
will need to reestablish the nutrient cycle in the upper creek area if they are going to create 
sustainability because the upper area is sand.  If no reestablishment occurs it will result in 
the sustaining through artificial means.  A brief discussion ensued.   

• Hiatt asked about the effect of the retention dams upstream.  Orr stated that had they not 
existed there would not be a Caliente.  They contained close to 14,000 acre feet of water.  
Hiatt asked about the types of historical sediment.  Prentice stated that they were 
identifying and meeting the data needs.  Members questioned if the algae bloom was 
normal with this type of event.  Kerry stated that excessive nutrients were the cause of the 
algae.  These can come from pesticides from crops.  It is not normal, nor healthy for a river 



Mojave Southern Great Basin RAC                                         Thursday, June 16, 2005 3

to have that amount of algae.  Prentice added that they are focusing of short term “fixes” at 
this time and then looking to stabilize for the long term. 

 
9:00 a.m. – Clark, Lincoln and White Pine Counties Groundwater Development Project 

Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) presented by Bruce Flinn, Project Manager (see 
attachments 2 & 3) 

• Flinn added that there are a range of possible options and more information is needed 
from proponents before decisions can be made.  Members discussed water quality issues.  
Flinn explained that the group is proceeding with SNWA.  BLM’s objective is to make sure 
that SNWA has all of the data.  The group is putting together issue papers, and meets with 
the proponents.  After this, decisions will be made and the public will be informed.  Palma 
added that explained that ground water EIS is, for the BLM, a R.O.W. to reduce confusion 
about what BLM’s role in this is.  Flinn explained that the State Engineer can undertake 
hearings at any time to adjudicate water rights.  Members discussed water rights and 
BLM’s role in the whole process.   

• Flinn stated that there had been 9 meetings; 6 in Utah and 3 in Nevada.  They received 
3,000 comments and the comment period was extended an additional 45 days to August 
1, 2005.  He also explained that there had been a 2 day field trip where the group drove 
the entire project and most of the cooperating agencies were present.  The next step is to 
have a technical review of the data at a biological meeting which will involve only the 
cooperating agencies that are on the project.  There will be Hydrological meetings in Las 
Vegas on Thursday June 23 and Friday June 24. 

 
- Hiatt recessed the meeting at 9:44 a.m., reconvening at 9:55 a.m. – 

 
9:55 a.m. - Watershed Analysis was presented by Gary Medlyn, Project Manager for the BLM Ely 

District (see attachment 4) 
• Medlyn explained that there are four processes in the watershed analysis process 

• Assessment – gather data 
• Evaluation of the data – analyze 
• Determination for document findings 
• Implementation of findings 

• There are 61 watersheds based on Huck 5.  Some are divided by straight lines to make 
them more manageable and helps document range vegetative condition.  One of the most 
important data collected is the soil survey.  Based on the soil surveys they know the range 
of vegetation in that particular community should be.   

• Medlyn explained that anything that is done alters the vegetation in some way.  He also 
explained that BLM wants to stay away from staking watersheds, monitoring and 
managing because then that produces the highest problem maintaining those areas.  A 
brief discussion ensued regarding keeping areas in a desirable state. 

 
10:15 a.m. Field Managers Update given by Gene Kolkman, Juan Palma and William Fisher (see 

attachments 5, 6 & 7) 
• Hiatt asked Kolkman about the railroad route plans.  Kolkman stated that he didn’t know 

anything about a new route.  Kolkman said that the RMP is still on track for making 
changes on the draft and final.  Hiatt asked about the money from the sale of lands in 



Mojave Southern Great Basin RAC                                         Thursday, June 16, 2005 4

Lincoln County asked how money will be expended and when it will be in the account for 
use.  Kolkman stated that they are developing a strategy to use money for culture resource 
restoration.  Kolkman suggested adding this topic to the agenda for the meeting in August.  
Members agreed.  Billie stated that she would like some sort of briefing on the 
reproduction program that the Ely district is involved in.  Kolkman stated that they are 
monitored at each gather.  Hiatt commented about the efficiency of the inoculation of the 
mares.  Kolkman suggested a briefing at the next meeting on this topic.  A brief discussion 
ensued regarding birth control issue.  Kolkman stated that AML has been met in the Ely 
district and members congratulated him on this enormous achievement.  Agee pointed out 
that not all mares needed to be inoculated because there needs to be some viable 
population to reproduce.  Maichle asked about the Table Mt issue.  Kolkman commented 
on the Table Mt issue and explained that the EIS is in progress.  Kolkman said that he 
would get Maichle a schedule on the wind energy Table Mt issue.   

• Palma stated that Boca sales amounted to a little over 33 million.  Orr asked about the 
numbers of acres involved.  Palma stated that 2000 acres were originally included in this 
sale, most did not sell.  Colleen asked about Oliver Ranch.  Palma said that the program is 
still moving forward and on schedule.  Palma highlighted the North Las Vegas project 
stating that there are 2 areas in this project.  One equaling 5000 acres, the other equaling 
2300 acres.  There have been several meetings on the smaller 2300 acre parcel.  Much 
work has been done on the finalization of the Conservation Agreement.  Out of this parcel 
300 acres will be withheld for conservation.  The 2000 acres will be included in the 
November sale.  The Environmental Assessment and the Conservation Agreement are two 
documents that are “works in progress”.  Palma added that the average price per acre was 
$120,000.  The smaller parcels were generally 5 acres.  Joni Eastley asked where the 
money goes from Baca sales.  Jo Simpson clarified that the money goes into an account 
that goes back to Nevada.  It allows BLM to put land up for sale in smaller areas of the 
state where otherwise BLM wouldn’t be able to afford it.   

• Bob Maichle asked about the location of Cottonwood Rd and Fisher explained the area 
that the road is in.  Fisher gave updates on the Rangeland Health Assessment and stated 
that it was forwarded to the Battle Mountain Field Office today.  Fisher will review the draft 
next week.  The document will be put out for public review right after July 4 and will be 
open for public comment for 30 days.  From then, BLM will have seven days to incorporate 
the comments from the public into the document.  A multiple use decision will be put out at 
the end of August.  Fisher added that portions of the film “The Island” were filmed in 
Rhyolite.  He also stated that the Tonopah Field Station (TFS) staff has been working on 
locating abandoned mines around Beatty & Rhyolite.  Last year TFS, along with several 
other organizations, was involved in a project that was very successful in closing 44 mines 
within a one mile radius around Tonopah.  This year the same group is focusing on the 
area around Beatty.  Cathleen Clark came out and presented awards to the various 
cooperating agencies for last years accomplishments.  A brief discussion ensued 
regarding the mine closure project.  Fisher added that the Vogt ranch sold to a company 
that has a company in Vegas that subdivides land.  This ranch will be subdivided into 5 
acre parcels to be sold.  There are several different parcels, the largest being 450 acres.   

 
- Hiatt broke into the discussion to open the Public Comment Period. -  

 



Mojave Southern Great Basin RAC                                         Thursday, June 16, 2005 5

11:12 a.m. - Public Meeting: Ely BLM Field Office Conference Room 
 

- There being no public comment, Hiatt closed the public comment period at 11:12 a.m. – 
 

11:12 a.m. - Forest Service Update given by Pat Irwin, Ely District Ranger for the Humboldt - 
Toiyabe National Forest 

• Irwin explained that no decision has been reached on the Current area prescribed burn, 
hopefully one will be reached soon.   

• At this time they are inventorying the district for water damage from the water.  There have 
been a few closures due to the water damage.   

• 38 feral cows in the Quinn Canyon Range have been corralled this year and it is estimated 
that there are at least 30 more.  Once the cows are caught, the brand inspector determines 
if there is a brand and, if not, a public notice is published and after 30 days they are put up 
for auction.   

 
- Hiatt recessed the meeting at 11:35 a.m., reconvening at 12:30 p.m. – 

 
12:30 p.m. – Conservation Transfer Agreement process / RAC subcommittee request given by 

Michael Johnson and Gayle Marrs-Smith (see attachment 8) 
• Juan Palma explained that after the last meeting he had defined the scope and skill of the 

CTA group’s input.  The scoping meetings will help draft alternatives on what to do with the 
5000 acres.   

• Johnson explained that it is not as important as is seemed to be for the RAC to approve 
the CTA as a subcommittee.  The CTA, however, would still appreciate the RAC’s input.  
Palma added that they are no longer asking that the RAC approve the CTA as a 
subcommittee.  Weisser asked about if the paleontological areas have been surveyed.  
Johnson stated that he did not know if that had been done, but that this boundary is not set 
in stone and that it can change.  Beck pointed out that years ago the discovery was made 
and it has always been an assumption that the paleontological area continues up the 
wash.  Beck asked what the cultural issues in the 300 acres were.  Palma explained that 
the 300 acres were based on the flora in the area.  Hiatt asked if the county has been 
active in the CTA and if they are accepting responsibility for the county land that is on the 
edge of the BLM area.  Palma answered that he was not aware of the counties 
involvement in that way.  Palma asked the RAC if they were OK with the direction that the 
CTA was headed regarding this issue.  Billie Young stated that she felt the RAC was 
comfortable with what the CTA was accomplishing and she felt that the RAC would 
appreciate being updated on a regular basis, but did not see the need for an official sub-
committee at this time.  Members agreed.   

 
12:55 p.m. – Site Stewardship Program given by Mark Henderson and George Phillips (see 
attachment 9). 

• Henderson gave an overview of the BLM Nevada Site Stewardship program.   
• Phillips gave an overview of the Clark County Site Stewardship program. 
• Beck stated that by having the sites monitored BLM is benefiting the site.  She asked how 

many sites existed in the Ely district.  Henderson stated that there were 10,000 recorded 
based on a two percent inventory of the district.   



Mojave Southern Great Basin RAC                                         Thursday, June 16, 2005 6

• Parker asked about the percentage of volunteers that were accepted.  Henderson and 
Phillips explained that anyone who attends training is accepted unless they have been 
accused or convicted of an archaeological or weapons felony.  Parker voiced concerns 
about the lack of background investigations on the site stewardship program.  A brief 
discussion ensued about volunteers and the requirements of becoming one.   

• Members discussed the concern of the destruction of these sites and any viable options.  
Phillips explained that it is easier to stop the damage from happening rather than pursuing 
damages.    

 
 

2:05 p.m. – UNLV Environmental Initiative given by Allison Brody (see attachment 10) 
• Fisher asked if the curriculum for grades K-12 was based on multiple use.  Allison 

explained that the program takes an issue and evaluate it from different perspectives.  The 
program promotes the BLM mission and goals.   

• Jo Simpson asked what criteria were used to decide what order schools are brought in.  
Brody explained that there are many different types of programs.  The conservation 
initiative is the first approach.  They look at who offers what and then see what is missing.  
After that, they can figure how to match those together (schools, teachers, kids and the 
programs).  A discussion ensued regarding how to incorporate the programs into the 
curriculum and how to kink these field trips to what they kids are learning.  Brody explained 
that the program is based on finding out the best practices and doing it in a way that helps 
kids apply it to life.  She added that the PLI is in the business of coordinating programs that 
are already out there, not in creating or teaching the.  The basis of the program is to teach 
a multiple opinion learning environment to teach kids to learn understand and respect each 
opinion and use.   

 
- Hiatt recessed the meeting at 3:00 p.m., reconvening at 3:13 p.m. – 

 
 
3:13 p.m. – Gold Butte Tour presented by Juan Palma. 

• Palma stated he would like to propose to the RAC to try the tour again.  Members 
discussed the importance of this site and the urgency of viewing the damages.  A date of 
Friday October 7, 2005 was set.  

 
3:40 p.m. – Housekeeping issues presented by Chris Hanefeld. 

• Tour starts at 8 at the convention center.  Both the workshop and Gleason Creek tour will 
be tomorrow.  Workshop in the morning, tour in the afternoon.  

• Bill Fisher asked what RAC members wanted to tour at the meeting in Tonopah.  He stated 
that he needs help with Rhyolite and that Joni Eastley offered to take the lead on the 
Rhyolite issue in Beatty.  Bill also suggested a wildlife tour.  Members discussed the 
different options for the tour.  Hiatt suggested looking into funds from question one.  
Members decided to add Rhyolite topic to the agenda for the Tonopah meeting.  

 
3:54 p.m. – Adjourn 
 

- There being no further business, Hiatt adjourned the meeting at 3:54 p.m. - 



Mojave Southern Great Basin RAC                                         Thursday, June 16, 2005 7

 
         
 
         APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
_________________________                  _________________________ 
Date         Dr. John Hiatt, vice-Chair 
         Mojave-Southern Great Basin 
         Resource Advisory Council 
 

- Minutes provided by Karen Eller, BLM Tonopah Field Station - 
 

Attachments: 
 

1. Union Pacific and Meadow Valley Wash 
2. Clark, Lincoln and White Pine Counties Groundwater Development Project Environmental Impact Statement 
3. Clark, Lincoln and White Pine Counties Groundwater Development Project Environmental Impact Statement 
4. Ely District Watershed Analysis 
5. Ely Field Mgr Report 
6. Las Vegas Field Mgr Report 
7. Battle Mountain Field Mgr Report 
8. Conservation Transfer Agreement 
9. Site Stewardship Program 
 

 


